
 

 

Corporate Parenting 
Board 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Councillor Maria Gatland (Chair) 

  
 Councillors Tamar Barrett, Amy Foster, Joseph Lee, Ian Parker, 

Helen Redfern, Catherine Wilson and Vacancy 
 

 Core Members 
 
Co-Chair, Care Experienced Young Person (voting) 
Children Looked After/Care Experienced Young People living in and out of 
Croydon Borough (non-voting) 
Carer Representatives (Voting): Angela Christmas, Manny Kwamin 
Parent/Grandparent representatives (voting) 
Director of Education (non-voting): Shelley Davies 
Director of Housing Management (non-voting): Mary Larbie 
Director of Adult Social Care (non-voting): Bianca Byrne, Simon Robson 
NHS Commissioner (voting) 
 

A meeting of the Corporate Parenting Board which you are hereby summoned to 
attend, will be held on Wednesday, 1 May 2024 at 5.00 pm in F10, Town Hall, 
Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX  
 
KATHERINE KERSWELL 
Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 
London Borough of Croydon 
Bernard Weatherill House 
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA 

Tom Downs 
tom.downs@croydon.gov.uk 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings  
Tuesday, 23 April 2024 

 
The agenda papers for all Council meetings are available on the Council website 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 
 
If you require any assistance, please contact Tom Downs as detailed above. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings


 

 

AGENDA – PART A 
  

1.   Apologies for absence  
 To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the Board. 

  
2.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 20 March 2024 as an 
accurate record. 
  

3.   Disclosures of interest  
 Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 

(DPIs) and other registrable and non-registrable interests they may have 
in relation to any items(s) of business on today’s agenda. 
  

4.   Urgent Business (if any)  
 To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the 

opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered 
as a matter of urgency. 
  

5.   Update on actions agreed at previous meeting(s)  
  

6.   Update on Protected Characteristic Working Group  
 To receive a verbal update on the Protected Characteristic Working Group. 

  
7.   Update from Children's Participation Team & Children in Care 

Council  
 To receive a verbal update from the Children’s Participation Team and 

Children in Care Council. 
  

8.   Update on Constitutional Changes  
 To receive a verbal update on Constitutional Changes as they relate to 

the Corporate Parenting Board. 
  

9.   Permanence Sub-Group Discussion  
 To receive a verbal update on the Permanence Sub-Group. 

  
10.   Performance Report (Pages 13 - 18) 

 The Performance report for March 2024 is attached. 
  

11.   Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed 



 

 

3

to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting: 
 
“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.” 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Corporate Parenting Panel 
 
 

Meeting of held on Wednesday, 20 March 2024 at 5.00 pm in Room 1.01 and 1.02 - 
Bernard Weatherill House, Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: 
 

Councillor Maria Gatland (Chair); Councillors Amy Foster, Ian Parker, Helen 
Redfern and Catherine Wilson 

  
Co-optee Members 
 
KH (Care Experienced Young Person Co-Chair)  
Angela Christmas (Foster Carer Representative) 
Joel Pace-Jr (Youth Service Co-Ordinator) 
Shelley Prince (Head of Commissioning & Procurement CYPE) 
Simon Robson (Director of Adult Social Care Operations (Deputy DASS)) 
Shelley Davies (Director of Education) 
Sarah Bailey (Head of Access to Education Service) 
Manny Kwamin (Foster Carer Representative) 
Adam Fearon-Stanley (Service Manager) 
 

Also  
Present: 

 
Carolyn Jones (Interim Head of Service Children in Care & Care Experienced 
Young People) 
Jane Scott (Subject Matter Expert) 
Deborra John (Head of Service Children in Care & Care Experienced Young 
People) 
Alison Welch (Leaving Care (NEET) Officer) 
Amma Ahwireng (Advisory Teacher for CLA Outcomes) 
Marcia Smith (Advisory Teacher for CLA Outcomes) 
Ben Ensom (Head of Safeguarding and Wellbeing, Croydon College) 
Tashala Lawson (Youth Engagement Practitioner) 
Dan Bowden (Head Teacher, Greenvale Primary School) 
Louise Wilkinson (Co-Director, The ARC Centre) 
 

Apologies: Róisín Madden (Director of Children’s Social Care) and Councillors Barrett and 
Lee 

  
PART A 

 
  

9/24   
 

Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2024 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 
  
  

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

10/24   
 

Disclosures of interest 
 
There were none. 
  
  

11/24   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
There was none. 
 
  

12/24   
 

Update on actions agreed at previous meeting(s) 
 
Performance Report: 
  
The Panel heard that practitioners in Children in Care and Care Experienced 
Young People teams would be updating their emails to contain their line 
manager and duty contact details. A standard out of office script had also 
been implemented for use by staff who were on leave for longer than a day 
containing the same information. In cases where a practitioner was out of 
office for more than one week, the Team Manager would be responsible for 
contacting each child on the practitioners’ caseload to inform them of the 
arrangements in their absence. 
  
The Panel asked for an update on how the duty system was working and 
were informed that the new arrangements already discussed gave clear 
direction and that there was an expectation that conversations would also be 
taking place with young people and families during normal contact. The Panel 
highlighted the importance of not asking young people to wait for their social 
worker or personal assistant to return from leave to deal with their queries. 
  
ACTION – For the Panel to receive a further update on improvements to 
the duty system at the next meeting. 
 
  

13/24   
 

Update on Protected Characteristic Working Group 
 
The Corporate Parenting Panel received a verbal update from the Youth 
Service Co-Ordinator on the Protected Characteristic Working Group. The first 
young person’s group had met with the next session scheduled for March 
2024; the following feedback was given: 
  

-        Opt-in is an important option for young people and young people 
valued being able to make this choice for themselves. 

-        Young people had concerns about resentment from others. 
-        Young people had concerns about carrying additional labels. 
-        Young people had questions about why this was important at this time 

in their lives. 
  
The following questions were asked by young people at the session: 
  

Page 6



 

 
 

-        What plans did the Council have around protected characteristics? 
-        Could this have a negative impact later in life? 
-        Why is this important for young people right now? 

  
The Panel heard that the next meeting of the group would include young 
people up to the age of 25. The Chair commented that young people needed 
more information around protected characteristics and asked the Subject 
Matter Expert to look into this. The Chair encouraged officers to talk to other 
Councils who had done similar work to see if there were any lessons learned 
that could be adopted for future group meetings. 
  
The Head of Safeguarding and Wellbeing for Croydon College offered to 
collaborate with officers to promote future meetings of the group to young 
people. 
  
The service manager for the participation service is working closely with HR 
and the Communications team to share a survey to 18+ Care Experienced 
Adults within the council and in the wider community. The feedback from the 
initial consultations will inform the survey approach.  The Panel discussed the 
importance of providing young people with the correct information in surveys 
to ensure that responses were accurate and representative. 
  
The Panel were informed that the contract for the Care Leavers app is with 
the legal team to progress and the Data Protection Impact Assessment 
(DPIA) for the Care Leavers app had now been completed and signed off. 
 
  

14/24   
 

Update from Children's Participation Team & Children in Care Council 
 
The Corporate Parenting Panel received an update from the Children’s 
Participation Team. The Youth Service Co-Ordinator shared with the Panel 
that there were 14 active ambassadors who would soon receive their first 
payment for their work, and that recruitment for ambassadors was still 
ongoing. 
  
The Panel heard that there was ambassador representation on all Corporate 
Parenting Panel Sub-Groups and that ambassadors had given feedback on 
new Pathway Plans. Ambassadors had presented to Heads of Service 
meetings and the Staff Conference Panel. The Panel were informed that a 
pilot ‘participatory recording portal project’ had been started to allow 
ambassadors to record their own journeys; this would allow young people to 
write directly into their own file, which would trigger a notification to their social 
worker. 
  
Ambassadors had attended the Pan London Forum and the Panel heard that 
the main takeaways had been that there needed to be a focus on improving 
consistency of social care services between boroughs, improving 
representation, and working to reduce young people not in employment, 
education or training (NEET) levels for care experienced young people. The 
Forum had also discussed transport and mental health services for young 

Page 7



 

 
 

people, with it noted that mental health had suffered amongst young people 
during the pandemic. The Chair commented that the Forum had been a very 
positive event. The Panel learned that Transport for London (TfL) would be 
launching a care experienced young person’s discount of 50% for trams and 
buses for under 25s. 
  
The relaunch of the Care Experienced Forum would take place in April 2024 
with it hoped that this would engage new young people to participate. The 
Panel were informed that there would be sessions focussed around the 
Corporate Parenting Strategy priorities and consideration given on how to 
engage children of all ages, for example by use of ‘AdvoCat’, an engagement 
programme for primary age children. 
  
The Chair praised the work being done by the ambassadors and the 
Children's Participation Team. The Panel heard that a recent conference had 
shown that care experienced young people were subject to greater health 
inequalities, and that there would be future engagement with colleagues in the 
South West London Integrated Care Board (SWLICB) and NHS England 
around these issues. 
 
  

15/24   
 

Education, Employment & Training Sub-Group discussion 
 
The Corporate Parenting Panel received a verbal update on the Education, 
Employment & Training Sub-Group discussion which had taken place in the 
previous week. 
  
The Director of Education introduced the item and explained that the meeting 
had included three ambassadors, with a follow up meeting planned. The 
group had discussed what was currently working well and what needed 
improvement around education, employment and training for care 
experienced young people. The three key themes that had emerged were: 
  

-        Decision Making  
-        Transitions 
-        Communication 

  
The Sub-Group would develop an action plan following the discussions that 
had taken place in the meeting as well as further develop how success would 
be measured. The Co-Chair fed back that they had found the meeting to be 
positive and that they were looking forward to seeing the action plan develop. 
  
The Panel were informed that a lot of work had been taking place around the 
virtual school and a transition event had taken place in September 2023 to 
discuss the support needs of children and ensure the correct information was 
available to them. There had also been conversations about support that 
could be provided during the summer for young people transitioning between 
schools and colleges. The Panel heard that there were considerations around 
adding a ‘transitions’ page to the care leaver app. The importance of 
protecting the support network around young people was highlighted as well 

Page 8



 

 
 

as the need to provide the pathways that young people needed to follow their 
ambitions and achieve their goals. 
  
The Chair asked for an update on the Care Leaver app, and the Panel heard 
that the contract was awaiting legal sign off but that the DPIA had been now 
been completed; a definitive date for the contract to be finalised was not yet 
available. The Panel were informed that background work was still ongoing 
and that a team of young people were ready to help co-design aspects of the 
app. 
  
The Head of Safeguarding and Wellbeing for Croydon College explained that 
the SWLICB had provided a career day for young people and adults, and 
suggested that future events could be promoted to care experienced young 
people. The Panel heard about the Black Care Experience Conference which 
had taken place in February 2024. 
 
  

16/24   
 

Annual Report of the Virtual School 
 
The Panel received an introduction from the Co-Director of ‘The Arc Centre’ 
and the Head Teacher of Greenvale Primary School and heard about the 
work being done with young people receiving emotional wellbeing support 
through animal care and mentoring and the positive effects this was having on 
their lives and life chances. The Panel praised the work being done and 
reflected that this had opened up additional opportunities to engage with 
young people later on in their lives. 
  
The Panel received the Annual Report of the Virtual School which was 
introduced by the Head of Access to Education Service who ran through a 
presentation summarising the report. In response to a question on NEETs 
from Councillor Parker, the Panel heard that there was ongoing work with 
Head of Employment, Skills & Economic Development and the Education, 
Employment & Training Sub-Group to look at how NEET rates could be 
reduced; it was hoped that the impact of this work would be apparent in next 
year’s Annual Report. The Panel received testimony from the Advisory 
Teacher for CLA Outcomes about a student who had successfully engaged 
with the Virtual School to improve their education outcomes and attendance. 
  
The Leaving Care (NEET) Officer informed the Panel about work done with a 
young person through the NEET Drop-In Sessions at the Turnaround Centre 
who had received help with how to fill in job applications. The young person 
had been able to engage with the ‘Smart Works’ charity to undertake some 
coaching sessions and had been provided with an interview outfit; this had led 
to the young person successfully applying to a job through a social work open 
day at a different council. 
  
The Panel commented on the importance of lasting relationships with 
professionals developed through the virtual school or college. The Panel 
heard about the launch of the Inclusion Strategy that would be taking place in 
the next year. In response to questions about whom the Virtual School was 

Page 9



 

 
 

open to, it was clarified that this was any young person who had an allocated 
social worker in the last six years. 
  
The Panel RESOLVED to: 
  

1.              Agree the report and the key priorities for the Access to Education 
Service, which form the foundation for the day-to-day operation of the 
Virtual School. 

  
2.              Act in governance of the Virtual School operations, 2022-23 Access to 

Education service priorities were: 
  
1.     Ensure Croydon’s schools take steps to become more inclusive: 

working in partnership with the Local Authority CYPE Directorate, 
including Children’s Social Care, on issues around race, equalities, 
and safeguarding. 

2.     Ensure all vulnerable pupils and young people are supported in 
their education, training, and employment settings to make 
progress towards better educational outcomes. 

3.     Ensure training, advice and guidance is available to all Croydon 
settings for the inclusion of the most vulnerable. 

 
  

17/24   
 

Performance Report 
 
The Corporate Parenting Panel received the Performance report for the 
January data. The Interim Head in Service Children in Care and Care 
Experienced Young People introduced the item. 
  
The Chair asked for an update on how young people could know who to 
contact during holidays and when social workers were on leave. The Panel 
heard that an agreed email signature and out of office had been adopted for 
all social workers and personal assistants. The Panel were informed that 
there needed to be better forward planning for services to move to a less 
reactive approach. 
  
The Panels attention was drawn to indicators AD0 to AD9 and it was 
explained that these indicators referred to adoptions. The Panel heard that 
this area was performing well and that a new team had been formed to 
strategically focus on adoptions; this was partly responsible for this increased 
performance. 
  
ACTION – For the Performance Report to continue to include adoption 
indicators AD0 to AD9 for future meetings. 
  
On CLA 15, it was explained that issues around Pathway Plans were being 
worked on, but that this would take some time due to complexity and legacy 
issues. The Panel heard that the Council was engaged in improvement work 
with Islington Council who had raised that the Pathway Plan tool used in 
Croydon could be improved and a better format used; Islington Council had 

Page 10



 

 
 

consulted with Croydon staff and young people on a new format. The Panel 
asked when it was expected that improvement would be apparent and heard 
that the average improvement journey was around two years, owing to the 
number of Children Looked After and Care Experienced Young People in 
Croydon. The Panel were informed that there needed to be a culture shift for 
team managers to be able to decline to sign off Pathway Plans and have the 
confidence to miss timescales when these were not good enough. The Panel 
heard that the service was under additional scrutiny with the Chief Executive 
sitting in on some performance meetings. 
  
ACTION – For an update on Pathway Plans to be given at future 
meetings of the Panel. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 6.59 p.m. 
 

Signed:   

Date:   

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Children In Care & Care Experienced Young People - March 2024

Local UASC Male Female 0-4 5-9 10-14 15-16 17-18 Disabled 78% England average 89% (22/23)

Children In 
Care 520 420 100 315 205 77 61 124 133 125 45

Local UASC Male Female 16 17-18 19-21 22+ Disabled 42% England average 76% (22/23)

Care Experienced 
(OPEN) 782 347 432 555 227 1 78 435 268 60

Ethnicity 
Description

A1 - White British A2 - White Irish
A3 - Any other 

White background
A5 - Gypsy / Roma

B1 - White and 
Black Caribbean

B2 - White and 
Black African

B3 - White and 
Asian

B4 - Any other 
mixed background

C1 - Indian C2 - Pakistani C3 - Bangladeshi
C4 - Any other 

Asian background
D1 - Caribbean D2 - African

D3 - Any other 
Black background

E1 - Chinese
E2 - Any other 
ethnic group

E4 - 
Information 

not yet 
obtained

No of CLA 107 3 34 1 46 11 13 35 3 5 2 60 73 68 36 5 15 2

% 20.6% 0.6% 6.5% 0.2% 8.8% 2.1% 2.5% 6.7% 0.6% 1.0% 0.4% 11.5% 14.0% 13.1% 6.9% 1.0% 2.9% 0.4%

82% England average 69% 
(22/23) 64% England average 66% 

(22/23) 74% England average 69% 
(22/23)

91% England average 88% 
(22/23) 62% England average 56% 

(22/23) 7% England average 10% 
(22/23)

86% 96% 150

75% 97% England average 92% 
(22/23) 94%

of Care Leavers with an up to date Pathway Plan

Percentage of CLA for whom a visit has taken 
place within statutory timescales (30 working 

days)

of 19 to 21 year olds in touch with the authority 

of eligible CLA with an up to date Care Plan (6 
months) 

of children looked after who have had 
their annual health assessment

of children looked after who had their 
teeth checked by a dentist

of 17- and 18-year-old care experienced 
young people in  education, employment or 

training

of CLA under 16 in care for more than 2.5 
years: in the same placement for 2+ years

of 17- and 18-year-old care experienced 
young people in suitable accommodation

of 19-, 20- and 21-year-old care experienced 
young people in suitable accommodation

of 19-, 20- and 21-year-old care experienced 
young people in  education, employment or 

training

of children looked after with three or more 
placement moves in the last twelve months

Total number of foster carer households

of Annual Reviews of Foster Carers completed 
on time 

62

Ac
co

m
od

at
io

n

EE
T

Pl
ac

em
en

ts

Health

Pl
an

s

Ke
ep

in
g

in
To

uc
h

Fo
st

er
in

g

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Indicator 
Number

Indicator Title Polarity Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Trend       RO
2023-24 
Target

Rolling 3 
month 

average 
(RTMA) or 

latest

 R
AG

RT
M

A/
LA

TE
S

T

2023-24 
YTD or 
latest

DfE 
Published 
Croydon 
2022-23

Stats Nbr 
Average 
2022-23

London
2022-23

England
2022-23

2023-24

CLA 1 Number of CLA at the end of the month 534 530 524 515 511 504 506 514 509 512 522 520 CJ NA 520 Grey LATEST 520 531 533 9,710 83,840

CLA 2 Rate of CLA per 10,000 under 18 population 59.2 58.7 58.1 57.1 56.6 55.9 56.1 57.0 56.4 56.7 57.8 57.6 CJ NA 57.6 Grey LATEST 57.6

CLA 2a
Rate of CLA per 10,000 under 18 population 
excluding UASC

SIB 47.9 47.9 47.5 46.8 46.2 45.3 45.7 46.2 45.9 46.4 47.0 46.5 CJ 49.9 46.5 Green LATEST 46.5

CLA 3
Number of CLA at the end of the month who are 
Local CLA (Non-UASC)

SIB 432 432 429 422 417 409 412 417 414 419 424 420 CJ 450 420 Green LATEST 420

CLA 3b
Number of Ceased CLA in the month who are Local 
CLA (Non-UASC)

17 12 17 10 23 19 12 11 11 12 19 5 CJ NA 12 Grey RTMA 168

CLA 4
Number of CLA at the end of the month who are 
UASC

102 98 95 93 94 95 94 97 95 93 98 100 CJ 95 - 103 100 Green LATEST 100.0 103 52 1,380 7,290

CLA 4b Number of Ceased CLA in the month who are UASC 6 9 5 7 3 4 6 5 5 5 2 0 CJ NA 2 Grey RTMA 57

CLA 5 Number of new CLA in month (total) 11 18 12 18 17 24 19 17 11 23 26 8 CJ NA 19 Grey RTMA 204 245 211 4,890 33,000

CLA 6 Number of new CLA in month who are UASC 2 1 7 6 3 6 4 10 2 6 5 1 CJ NA 4 Grey RTMA 53

CLA 7
Rate of adolescents entering care per 10,000 (13-17 
year olds) population excl. UASC 

9.7 24.2 19.4 24.2 26.1 27.4 26.3 25.4 25.3 27.1 26.8 26.2 CJ NA 26.2 Grey LATEST 26.2

CLA 8
Rate of adolescents leaving care per 10,000 (13-17 
year olds) population excl. UASC

14.5 33.9 35.5 31.4 39.7 38.7 39.4 37.5 37.1 35.3 35.6 33.5 CJ NA 33.5 Grey LATEST 33.5

CLA 9
Percentage of the under 18 years population who are 
UASC 

0.113% 0.109% 0.105% 0.103% 0.104% 0.105% 0.104% 0.107% 0.105% 0.103% 0.109% 0.111% CJ
0.105% - 
0.114%

0.111% Green LATEST 0.111%

CLA 10
Percentage of CLA for whom a visit has taken place 
within statutory timescales (30 working days)

BIB 91% 92% 95% 96% 94% 95% 93% 95% 96% 96% 96% 96% CJ 95% 96% Green LATEST 96%

CLA 11
Percentage of CLA children with an up-to-date review 
(Provisional Figure)

BIB 88% 89% 96% 93% 93% 91% 89% 86% 87% 91% 93%
TBC 

(monthly 
time lag)

DW 98% 90% Red RTMA 91%

CLA 12
Percentage of CLA who have participated in Reviews 
(aged 4+) in the month

BIB 84% 99% 95% 83% 89% 90% 90% 96% 88% 91% 96% 100% DW 80% 96% Green RTMA 92%

CLA 13
CLA 13 - Percentage of CLA at SSA (Statutory 
School Age) with a Personal Education Plan (PEP) 
reviewed & completed in the last 6 months.

BIB 94% 92% 98% 94% 92% 91% 96% 72% 97% 95% 88% 95% CJ 90% 95% Green LATEST 95%

CLA 14
Percentage of eligible CLA with an up-to-date Care 
Plan (6 months)

BIB 89% 87% 89% 84% 92% 90% 91% 83% 77% 82% 82% 86% CJ 90% 86% Amber LATEST 86%

CLA 15
Percentage of eligible CLA with an up-to-date  
Pathway Plan(ActiveDraft Plans Only)

BIB 63% 68% 71% 70% 83% 84% 81% 77% 62% 63% 58% 68% CJ 90% 68% Red LATEST 68%

Children Looked After (CLA)

P
age 15



Indicator 
Number

Indicator Title Polarity Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Trend       RO
2023-24 
Target

Rolling 3 
month 

average 
(RTMA) or 

latest

 R
AG

RT
M

A/
LA

TE
S

T

2023-24 
YTD or 
latest

DfE 
Published 
Croydon 
2022-23

Stats Nbr 
Average 
2022-23

London
2022-23

England
2022-23

2023-24

CLA 19
Percentage of CLA that have been in care for 12+ 
months aged below 16 and who have had same 
social worker for last 6 months 

BIB 69% 63% 62% 65% 68% 68% 62% 65% 63% 61% 62% 63% CJ 65% 63% Amber LATEST 63%

CLA t19
Percentage of CLA that have been in care for 12+ 
months, that have had same social worker for last 6 
months

BIB 67% 63% 60% 61% 62% 66% 61% 61% 59% 57% 60% 59% CJ 65% 59% Amber LATEST 59%

CLA 20
Percentage of CLA under 16 in care for more than 
2.5 years: in the same placement for 2+ years

BIB 73% 72% 72% 73% 73% 73% 73% 75% 74% 76% 75% 74% CJ 75% 74% Amber LATEST 74% 73% 71% 69% 69%

CLA 21
Percentage of CLA at end of month with 3 or more 
placements during the year

SIB 7% 7% 7% 7% 8% 8% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7% CJ 8% 7% Green LATEST 7% 7% 10% 10% 10%

CLA 22 Percentage of CLA placed <20 miles from home BIB 82% 81% 81% 82% 81% 81% 81% 81% 82% 82% 81% 80% CJ 90% 80% Amber LATEST 80%

CLA 23 Number of CLA allocated to CWD 17 17 16 16 16 16 16 17 17 18 18 18 BG NA 18 Grey LATEST 18

CLA 24
Percentage of CLA for whom a visit has taken place 
within statutory timescales (Allocated to CWD teams/ 
6 weekly) 

BIB 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% BG 95% 100% Green LATEST 100%

CLA 25
Number of CLA who returned home (E4A, E4B, E13, 
E41)

BIB 3 2 5 0 1 3 3 8 5 0 8 2 CJ NA 3 Grey RTMA 40 40 46 930 5510

P
age 16



Indicator 
Number

Indicator Title Polarity Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Trend       RO
2023-24 
Target

Rolling 3 
month 

average 
(RTMA) or 

latest

 R
AG

RT
M

A/
LA

TE
S

T

2023-24 
YTD or 
latest

DfE 
Published 
Croydon 
2022-23

Stats Nbr 
Average 
2022-23

London
2022-23

England
2022-23

2023-24

CLA 16
Percentage of children in care for at least 12 months 
for whom health assessments are up to date.

BIB 83% 83% 86% 86% 83% 83% 83% 85% 85% 83% 78% 78%
CLA 

Health 
Team

95% 78% Red LATEST 78% 86% 92% 91% 89%

CLA 17
Percentage of initial health assessments requested 
for health service within 3 working days of date child 
become looked after.

BIB 22% 43% 46% 59% 50% 65% 47% 47% 50% 27% 52%
TBC 

(monthly 
time lag)

CLA 
Health 
Team

NA 52% Grey LATEST 50%

CLA 18
Percentage of initial health assessments delivered 
within 20 working days of date child became looked 
after.

BIB 13% 36% 50% 47% 36% 43% 42% 69% 30% 50% 10%
TBC 

(monthly 
time lag)

CLA 
Health 
Team

85% 10% Red LATEST 30%

F 1 Total number of Foster carer households BIB 175 171 170 169 165 162 161 155 155 152 150 150 BG NA 150 Grey LATEST 150

F 2 Percentage of DBS Checks within time BIB 95% 94% 95% 98% 98% 99% 95% 94% 96% 95% 96% 94% BG 95% 94% Amber LATEST 94%

F 3
Percentage of Annual Reviews of Foster Carers 
completed on time

BIB 93% 98% 94% 97% 93% 90% 93% 96% 95% 98% 95% 94% BG 95% 94% Amber LATEST 94%

F 4
Percentage of Foster Carers' most recent announced 
visit within timescales (6 weekly)

BIB 89% 94% 90% 91% 77% 84% 96% 95% 80% 88% 85% 80% BG 95% 80% Red LATEST 80%

AD 0 Number of Adoption Orders achieved in the month BIB 1 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 CJ NA 0 Grey LATEST 0

AD 1 Number of ADM Decisions made in the month BiB 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 2 0 2 1 2 CJ NA 2 Grey LATEST 2

AD 2 Number of Placement Order granted in the month 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 5 0 1 0 CJ NA 0 Grey LATEST 0

AD 3
Number of children placed with prospective Adopters 
in the month

BiB 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 CJ NA 1 Grey LATEST 1

AD 7

Average time between a child entering care and 
moving in with the adoptive family , for children who 
have been adopted (days) (12 Months rolling 
average)

SIB 582 615 615 615 631 631 631 677 536 539 539 594 CJ 558 594 Amber LATEST 594

AD 8

Average time between the LA receiving court 
authority to place a child and the LA deciding on a 
match to an adoptive family (days) (12 months rolling 
average)

SIB 321 346 354 354 315 315 315 352 178 174 174 179 CJ 226 179 Green LATEST 179

AD 9
Number of special guardianship orders made in the 
month (from care)

BIB 3 1 2 3 0 4 3 1 2 3 3 0 BG NA 0 Grey LATEST 0

P
age 17



Indicator 
Number

Indicator Title Polarity Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Trend       RO
2023-24 
Target

Rolling 3 
month 

average 
(RTMA) or 

latest

 R
AG

RT
M

A/
LA

TE
S

T

2023-24 
YTD or 
latest

DfE 
Published 
Croydon 
2022-23

Stats Nbr 
Average 
2022-23

London
2022-23

England
2022-23

2023-24

CEYP a
Care experienced young people with an Up-to-date 
Pathway plan

BIB 76% 77% 77% 75% 91% 94% 92% 92% 87% 83% 76% 75% CJ 85% 75% Red LATEST 75%

CEYP 1b
Number of Care experienced young people in 
employment, education, or training (EET) now aged 
19 to 21 

BIB 279 279 275 276 276 272 279 277 272 263 272 268 CJ NA 268 Grey LATEST 268 287 172 4390 19380

CEYP 1c
Percentage in employment, education, or training 
(EET) now aged 19 to 21  

BIB 60% 60% 59% 60% 60% 60% 62% 61% 60% 60% 62% 62% CJ 60% 62% Green LATEST 62% 52% 59% 60% 56%

CEYP 2b
Number of Care experienced young people not in 
employment, education, or training (NEET) now aged 
19 to 21 

SIB 181 177 183 177 176 168 163 168 170 168 164 167 CJ NA 167 Grey LATEST 167 179 99 2400 13060

CEYP 2c
Percentage not in employment, education, or training 
(NEET) now aged 19 to 21 (Excluding the unknowns)

SIB 39% 38% 39% 38% 38% 37% 36% 38% 38% 39% 38% 39% CJ NA 39% Grey LATEST 39% 32% 33% 33% 38%

CEYP 3b
Number of Care experienced young people in 
suitable accommodation now aged 19 to 21

BIB 430 428 432 430 429 418 421 414 410 401 398 395 CJ NA 395 Grey LATEST 395 436 251 6370 30320

CEYP 3c
Percentage in suitable accommodation now aged 19 
to 21

BIB 91% 91% 92% 92% 92% 91% 91% 91% 91% 91% 91% 91% CJ 90% 91% Green LATEST 91% 79% 86% 88% 88%

CEYP 5a
Percentage in touch with the authority now aged 19 to 
21 

BIB 98% 98% 98% 98% 97% 96% 96% 97% 97% 97% 97% 97% CJ 95% 97% Green LATEST 97% 84% 91% 91% 92%

CEYP 6
Care experienced young people - LOCAL (non-
UASC)

323 329 333 337 341 345 348 329 353 350 358 347 CJ NA 347 Grey LATEST 347

CEYP 7
Care experienced young people - UASC (non-
LOCAL)

438 439 445 444 443 442 447 443 437 433 429 432 CJ NA 432 Grey LATEST 432

CEYP 8
Number of young people who have Appeals Rights 
Exhausted

6 6 7 6 6 6 5 5 7 7 6 6 CJ NA 6 Grey LATEST 6P
age 18


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	10 Performance Report
	Corporate Parenting Monthly Dashboard - March 2024


